SASKATCHEWAN CANCER AGENCY

A healthy population free from cancer

Annual Report 2019-20



The Saskatchewan Cancer Agency recognizes that our work takes place on the traditional territory of First
Nations and Métis people, and includes Treaties 2, 4, 5, 6, 8, and 10. We respect and honour the Treaties, we

acknowledge the harms of the past, and we are committed to moving forward with First Nations and Métis
people in truth, reconciliation and collaboration.
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Letter of Transmittal

The Honourable Jim Reiter
Minister of Health
Government of Saskatchewan
Legislative Building

Regina, Saskatchewan

S4S 0B3

Dear Minister Reiter:

| have the honour of submitting the Saskatchewan Cancer Agency'’s
annual report, including highlights of the work accomplished and the
audited financial statements, for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2020.

As the entity responsible for providing cancer control for the province of Saskatchewan, the Cancer Agency's
primary focus is the safe delivery of services to clients and patients. Never in our history has this been more
important than now, amidst a pandemic that has changed the world.

Swift planning and action by leadership, staff, physicians and the Board of Directors ensured that patients
could continue to receive safe, high-quality cancer care, through to the end of this fiscal year. The Agency's
response to COVID-19 has been second to none and | have never been more proud to be a part of this
organization.

The Agency also celebrated many accomplishments over the past year. Some of the more important included:

« Assumed responsibility of the Gyne-Oncology Program of Saskatchewan, and fully staffed this important
cancer care need to provide patients a comprehensive program.

« Continued to increase our presence in Northern Saskatchewan in our ongoing work to help educate all
Saskatchewan residents about cancer screening, prevention and treatment.

« Added numerous new oncology drugs to treatment options for cancer care.

« Operated in a fiscally responsible manner, achieving balance in our operating budget.

+  Welcomed and oriented a new member to our Board of Directors.

« Initiated a re-location of cancer lodge services in Saskatoon to continue serving the needs of patients/
families undergoing treatment.

+  With assistance from the recently formed Cancer Foundation of Saskatchewan, continued with necessary
upgrades and equipment replacement to best serve the diagnostic and treatment needs of Saskatchewan
people.

 Facilitated a more patient-centred approach to the provision of care to pediatric cancer patients, through a
re-balancing of operational responsibilities with our partners, the Saskatchewan Health Authority, and the
pediatric focused care provided at the Jim Pattison Children’s Hospital in Saskatoon.

This annual report illustrates the Cancer Agency’s commitment to Saskatchewan residents and the ongoing
efforts to support the early detection, prevention, research and treatment of cancer in our province.

Respectfully,

W/

Ron Waschuk
Board Chair



Message from the President and Chief
Executive Officer

Each year, we are presented with new challenges in healthcare. In
March 2020, we were faced with the biggest global health crisis in
recent history as the COVID-19 pandemic arrived in Saskatchewan.

Due to the progressive nature of cancer and the need for
treatment to continue uninterrupted, the Saskatchewan Cancer
Agency staff and leadership immediately responded to the

crisis in a way that | have never experienced in my career. The
Emergency Operations Committee was activated, working groups
were developed to address urgent needs, employees were
redeployed, and the Cancer Agency was able to adapt quickly to
the new environment. We continued to provide cancer treatment
and care to Saskatchewan residents in a safe and responsible
manner.

We have a long road ahead in overcoming this global pandemic,
but there is one thing | know for sure - the people who work for
this organization are the people who will see us through this crisis. Their willingness to step into new roles, take
on temporary duties, and do whatever is required to keep their colleagues and patients safe are the Agency’s
values in action. Providing cancer care amidst a pandemic could not continue without a unified team actively
demonstrating courage, integrity, vision, innovation and collaboration.

These same values also enabled the Agency to achieve a number of other milestones throughout the 2019-
20 fiscal year. We brought the gynecological oncology program under the umbrella of the Cancer Agency;
we transitioned the pediatric oncology program to the Jim Pattison Children’s Hospital; we embarked on
reimagining the breast cancer pathway from screening to treatment; we established four functional disease
site groups for the province; we created a research plan; we were invited to visit 30 Northern communities
to deliver health and cancer prevention education; and, we made strides in addressing the Truth and
Reconciliation Commission of Canada’s Calls to Action related to health.

This was a very busy year with many milestones, a lot of progress and some challenges in our ongoing efforts
to ensure timely access to safe, high-quality patient and family centred care. As we look forward to the year
ahead, | am confident we will find our new normal. We have learned a lot in the short time we have been
dealing with COVID-19, and there will be some key takeaways that we can integrate into our operations once
we resume business as usual.

Dr. Jon Tonita
President and Chief Executive Officer



What We Do

The Saskatchewan Cancer Agency is a provincial
healthcare organization with a legislated mandate to
provide cancer control for approximately 1.17 million
people in the province.

The Cancer Agency has a long history of providing
cancer control since 1930. With more than 850
employees at the Agency, we have a large team with
expertise in different fields related to cancer control
and each staff member is committed to providing
clients, patients and families with safe, quality
treatment, innovative research, early detection

and prevention programs. Our employees are also
committed to continuously improve our delivery of
programs and services.

The Cancer Agency is subject to or governed by the

following provincial legislation:

+ The Cancer Agency Act

« The Health Information Protection Act

« The Local Authority Freedom of Information and
Protection of Privacy Act

+ The Provincial Health Authority Act

TREATMENT

Through the Allan Blair Cancer Centre in Regina and
the Saskatoon Cancer Centre, patients have a team
of dedicated health professionals helping them to
understand their diagnosis and make choices on
treatment and care.

The cancer centres offer:

A supportive care department providing new
patient navigation, emotional and adjustment
counselling, assistance with practical needs, and
counselling for nutritional needs.

+ Areferral centre, operated by registered nurses,
that processes new referrals and books patients for
appointments.

« Treatment and assessment through the Blood
and Marrow Transplant Program for patients with
advanced blood and circulatory system cancers.

+ Out-patient systemic and radiation therapy.

+ Access to clinical trials.

PATIENT LODGES

The Cancer Agency also operates two lodges: one
in Regina and one in Saskatoon. The lodges provide
a low-cost option for out-of-town patients who

are looking for accommodation when they receive
treatment.

COMMUNITY ONCOLOGY PROGRAM OF
SASKATCHEWAN

The Community Oncology Program of Saskatchewan
(COPS) works together with our healthcare partners
to provide patients with care, treatment and

support closer to their home communities. There

are 16 COPS centres located in hospitals throughout
Saskatchewan (Estevan, Humboldt, Kindersley,
Lloydminster, Meadow Lake, Melfort, Melville, Moose
Jaw, Moosomin, Nipawin, North Battleford, Prince
Albert, Swift Current, Tisdale, Weyburn and Yorkton).

CANCER PREVENTION

Through collaboration with communities,
organizations and all levels of government, the
Cancer Agency works to create conditions in
Saskatchewan that improve population health and
well-being that can help prevent cancer. This is
achieved through:

A health promotion approach to cancer

prevention.

« Afocus on the social, environmental and
economic influences that impact health and well-
being.

« A commitment to health equity.

RESEARCH

At the Cancer Agency we have world-class
researchers who are helping make a difference in
treatment, programs and outcomes for patients.

We conduct laboratory research, clinical research,
including clinical trials, and epidemiology research.



What We Do

EARLY DETECTION

The Cancer Agency operates three population-
based screening programs:

+ Screening Program for Breast Cancer, which
started in 1990, includes clinics in Regina
and Saskatoon and satellite centres in
Lloydminster, Moose Jaw, North Battleford,
Prince Albert, Swift Current and Yorkton.
We also operate a mobile unit that travels to
rural and First Nation communities offering
screening mammograms.

« Screening Program for Cervical Cancer which
started in 2003

« Screening Program for Colorectal Cancer
which started in 2009

PATIENT AND FAMILY-CENTRED CARE

At the Cancer Agency we want to provide
exceptional care with the client, patient and
their family at the centre of every decision and
action. This starts with ensuring clients, patients
and their families not only have a voice about
their care and treatment, but also about how
services are delivered.

In 2011, we established a Patient and Family
Advisory Council (PFAC) with patients, family

members and our own staff coming together to:

« Improve the client, patient and family experience.

« Improve the relationship between clients, patients,
family and staff.

« Channel information, ideas and needs of patients
and clients.

« Provide input into services and programs.

FUNDRAISING

Philanthropy plays a vital role in the success of our
work. The Cancer Foundation of Saskatchewan is our
official fundraising partner. Donor support enables us
to:

+ Equip our facilities with the most advanced
technology to save lives and improve patient care.

« Care for the needs of people from early detection
through to treatment.

« Fund research that benefits patients and advances
our understanding of disease prevention,
diagnosis and treatment.

+ Maintain high levels of quality and satisfaction for
patients and employees.

+ Improve our facilities so we can deliver advanced,
efficient care to patients who come through our
doors.

In September 2019, the foundation launched its
inaugural provincial grassroots campaign to raise $3
million to replace two computer tomography (CT)
simulators at the Cancer Agency. The Agency’s two
simulators are almost 10 years old and at the end of
their life cycle.

The Screening Program for Breast Cancer bus travels to rural
and First Nations communities providing more than 8,000
mammograms each year.



Governance

OUR VISION

A healthy population free from cancer

OUR MISSION

To provide leadership in health promotion, early detection, treatment and research for cancer

OUR VALUES
Courage
Integrity
Vision-driven
Innovation

Collaboration

OUR STRUCTURE
Board of Directors
President and CEO
Care Servi . Medical Servi Population Health,
are Services —  Corporate Services edical Services Quality and Research




Governance

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Cancer Agency Act establishes the board as the governing body of the Cancer Agency. The Lieutenant
Governor in Council under The Cancer Agency Act appoints members of the board. The responsibilities of the
board include:

Selecting the president and chief executive officer and reviewing his or her performance.

Establishing the overall strategic direction and framework for the Cancer Agency, including the mission,
vision and values.

Providing financial stewardship by overseeing the financial management of the organization.

Monitoring the overall quality and safety of services and programs for staff and patients.

Establishing and maintaining relationships with key stakeholders.

Maintaining effective governance, which includes annually evaluating the board’s effectiveness and that of
its committees.

The president and chief executive officer (CEO) is the board’s link to the administration and day-to-day
operations of the Cancer Agency. The CEO is accountable to the board as a whole and is their sole employee.

Seated left to right: Kelly Scott, Moose Jaw; Ron Waschuk, Chair, Elkridge; Frances Stang, Macklin
Standing left to right: Douglas Finnie, Saskatoon; Howard Crofts, Vice Chair, Regina;
Lionel Chabot, North Battleford; Dr. Walter Streelasky, Melville; Don Ravis, Saskatoon



Governance

The board brings strong financial stewardship to the Cancer Agency. To be successful for such a large and
at times complex organization, board members devote a considerable amount of time to meetings and
committee work.

All of the members sit on committees that are designed to help strengthen the Cancer Agency’s accountability
to the people of this province.

Finance and Audit Committee

Members:
- Howard Crofts, Chair
+ Lionel Chabot

Doug Finnie

Governance and Human Resources Committee

Members:

« Don Ravis, Chair

+ Lionel Chabot
Kelly Scott

+ Frances Stang

Quality, Safety and Risk Committee

Members:

« Dr. Walter Streelasky, Chair
Howard Crofts

« Doug Finnie

Ron Waschuk, Board Chair, sits as ex-officio on all of the committees of the board and the CEO is a non-voting
member on each committee.

Louise Frederick, Patient and Family Advisory Council representative, is on the Quality, Safety and Risk
Committee as a non-voting member.



Strategic Plan

As the organization in Saskatchewan responsible for cancer care and prevention, the Saskatchewan Cancer
Agency (SCA) works with other partners in the health system in developing strategic priorities to align with the
direction and goals set forth by the Ministry of Health.

Together with the Saskatchewan Health Authority, Health Quality Council, 3sHealth and eHealth, we strive to
deliver safe, continuous person-centred care.

The SCA is guided by four strategic directions: better health, better care, better value and better teams. This
multi-year plan informs our delivery of care, services, research and programs and ensures our continued
commitment to quality, safety and improvement.

The driving force behind our goals and helping us move from vision to action is our strong desire to put people
first—clients, patients, families, and staff. This year, 2019-20, marks year 5 of our five-year plan.

Saskatchewan Cancer Agency Strategic Direction 2015-2020

« Goals: » Goals:
+ Health promofion + Accessibility
= Early detection » Treatment programs
« Research

Better Better
Health Care

Better
Value

+ Goals: + Goals:
» Leadership/talent . SI_|sl:ajl'la.bnllil.:lﬁI
« Engagement * Continuous
Improvement
* Investment

(” Putting Patients First

besser bealtls - bester care - besser value - betier teumi



Strategic Plan

PROGRESS IN 2019-20

The following is a snapshot of the progress the Saskatchewan Cancer Agency (SCA) made in 2019-20 on key
priorities. We are unwavering in our commitment to providing Saskatchewan residents with patient and family-
centred care through initiatives under the strategies of better health, better care, better value and better
teams.

High Operational Priorities

In 2019-20, the SCA focused its efforts on several key initiatives that were time sensitive and involved external
partners. These initiatives touch on each of the four strategic directions.

Provincial Gynecological Oncology Program

In June 2019, the SCA established a new gynecological oncology program to provide Saskatchewan residents
timely access to this highly specialized area of cancer care. This brings all aspects of gynecological oncology
under the SCA, where previously, the Cancer Agency, the Saskatchewan Health Authority and the University of
Saskatchewan’s College of Medicine collectively administered different components.

The program resulted in the hiring of a provincial physician lead and five gynecological oncologists - all
permanent positions based in Saskatchewan. The team has developed provincial model of care guidelines, and
is working on quality improvement initiatives and clinical trials, in addition to providing care to residents who
require gynecological oncology services.

Pediatric Oncology Program

In September 2019, the SCA transitioned pediatric oncology and hematology to the Jim Pattison Children’s
Hospital (JPCH). The move was made to leverage the expertise and facilities available within JPCH, which has
positioned itself to be a provincial pediatric center of excellence. It provides pediatric oncology patients and
families the opportunity to benefit from programs and services tailored to children, in a state-of-the-art facility.
Pediatric oncology services will continue to be offered in Regina for follow-up patients who prefer this location,
wherever possible.

Moving to the new facility also means that patients and families are closer to both the inpatient unit and the
new pediatric emergency department. Having all of these lifesaving services and providers under one roof
helps to improve the quality and continuity of care.

Administrative Information Management System (AIMS)

In October 2018, the SCA, the Saskatchewan Health Authority, 3sHealth, eHealth and affiliate organizations
launched a project to implement a new and integrated administrative information management system (AIMS)
throughout the health sector. AIMS will replace 82 existing, non-integrated systems and allow the health
system to better manage financial, capital, and human resources.

The SCA has been working with partners across healthcare on the project team delegated to developing and
configuring the system.



Strategic Plan

BETTER HEALTH INITIATIVES

Early Detection - Endoscopy Standards
Goal:

Enhance the colorectal screening program by continuing to coordinate the Direct Observation of Procedural
skills (DOPS) process for provincial endoscopists. Through DOPS, colonoscopists are observed and assessed to
support ongoing quality improvement. Increase the number of endoscopists volunteering for DOPS from 47 to
55 out of 69 eligible endoscopists by March 2020.

Actions:

+ The SCA received Medical Services Branch (MSB) billing data for colonoscopy, which resulted in efficiency
savings. The colonoscopy data ensures invitations are being sent to the appropriate screening population at
the correct interval.

CAG SEE Colonoscopy Skills Improvement (CSI) sessions were hosted in January, May and October 2019.

+ A quality colonoscopy report is produced and provided to each colonoscopist to benchmark their
performance against peers and literature.

The SCA collected and monitored participation rates among Saskatchewan residents to help narrow our
focus to target areas that may be below the recommendations set forth by the Canadian Partnership
Against Cancer (CPAC), and provide the opportunity to develop strategies to increase participation.

Results:

Surpassed original projected target for colonoscopists volunteering for DOPS with 59 of 69 colonoscopists
completed.

Early Detection - Breast Pathway
Goal:

Redesign the current breast pathway from screening to follow-up care, to ensure Saskatchewan residents have
equitable access to timely, high-quality, safe, efficient, person-centred care.

Actions:

« The SCA is collaborating with the SHA, Ministry of Health, eHealth Saskatchewan, community radiologists
and patients, to lead a review of the breast pathway in the province, which includes screening through
treatment.

« The SCA hosted a Design Day in April 2019 and has conducted various meetings, interviews and analyses
with stakeholders throughout the year.

A draft mammography service delivery model was presented in December 2019, with an agreement
obtained from the SCA, SHA and Ministry of Health on this delivery model.

Results:

The redesign of the breast pathway from screening to follow-up care is approximately 80 per cent completed.
It is anticipated this work will conclude June 2020, depending on key stakeholder ability due to current state.
Further planning and analysis is required before seeking final leadership team approval of the breast pathway
vision documents and strategic plan.

-10 -



Strategic Plan

Health Promotion
Goal:

Develop programming for the mobile health bus as a part of the Northern Engagement Strategy with SCA
related services piloted and evaluated to determine appropriateness for this channel.

Actions:

+ Since 2016, the SCA has funded a mobile unit that travels to northern communities in Saskatchewan by
invitation, bringing health education and activities, and partnering with local clinical staff to offer health
services and cancer prevention education.

« Between May and August 2019, the bus traveled 20,000 kms and participated in 38 visits to 30 northern
communities (8 re-visits). Approximately 3,000 people visited the bus to participate in education/awareness
activities on cancer prevention and screening and other health topics.

« Approximately 525 people accessed testing for HIV, hepatitis, STls, etc.

« New partnerships in providing influenza vaccination clinics was trialed in Prince Albert, as well as a mobile
food market in Saskatoon in areas with low food access.

. Staff submitted an abstract and presented at the September 2019 World Indigenous Cancer Conference in
Calgary, AB.

Results:

A 2019 evaluation of community-directed health initiatives showed 100 per cent of communities want the bus
back next year. The number of community visits grew nearly 1.5 times from 2018 to 2019.

Several participants indicated that the health bus has a positive impact on the access to health services,
provides visibility to the issue of cancer, eliminates the barrier of transportation, and provides awareness,
education, testing, and a feeling of community.

Research
Goal:
Implement provincial cancer research plan.

Actions:

« The Research department submitted a plan to executive, which was
vetted and approved by the Executive Leadership Team.

+ Aresearch strategy map has been completed, and a research
governance committee is in place.

« The research Data Access Committee was established and provides
research data to external partners within their requested target time.

Results:

A provincial cancer research plan has been achieved and is currently
underway.

Dr. Jim Xiang
SCA Senior Research Scientist

-11 -



Strategic Plan

BETTER CARE INITIATIVES

Access and Effective Treatment Programs - Clinical Management System

Goal:

The SCA strives to provide patients with their first appointment with an oncologist within 28 days of referral.
The annual targets are based on location and are as follows:
ABCC MO 60% SCC MO 65%
+ ABCCRO 80% SCCRO 70%
+ ABCCHem 80% SCC Hem 80%

Actions:

The work to have patients see an oncologist within 28 days of referral relies on many integrated systems
that fall under the Clinical Management System (CMS) project.

+ In 2019-20, the SCA implemented its new BDM pharmacy dispensing system, which replaced the former
Rx3000 application. The new BDM system is a welcome addition to the pharmacy department as it provides
faster order processing, greater stability, more features than the previous application, as well as the ability to
report on drug regimens and individual drug use.

« As well this year, the Aria Medical Oncology Upgrade was completed, which is required for Computerized
Physician Order Entry (CPOE). The Aria Radiation Oncology Upgrade was also completed, which is required
to enable new features of TrueBeam linear accelerators.

« The non-drug CPOE workflow processes were completed and training documentation prepared.

« The Tap-N-Go Workstation pilot in clinics was completed.

« The Scanning Operative Reports implemented.

Results:

First patient appointment with an oncologist within 28 days of referral. As of March 31, 2020:
+ ABCC MO 43% SCC MO 67%

« ABCCRO 48% SCC RO 59%

+ ABCCHem 88% SCCHem 76%

Access and Effective Treatment Programs - Disease Site Groups

Goal:

The SCA strives to establish four functional disease site groups by March 2020 for breast, gastrointestinal (Gl),
genitourinary (GU) and lung cancer teams.

Actions:
Provincial chairs were selected for the four disease site groups - breast, Gl, GU and lung. Rights and
responsibilities were established and terms of reference were created, as the groups defined their structure
and function.

« Developed standardized process of approving non-funded systemic treatment requests through the Case-
by-Case Review (CBCR) request policy by involving the disease site groups and pharmacy.

Results:

Provincial chairs were selected, terms of references developed, and disease site groups functioning for breast,
Gl, GU and lung cancer teams. Future work includes establishing disease site-specific clinics, as well as creating
a similar structure for the other solid tumour disease sites.



Strategic Plan

BETTER TEAMS INITIATIVES

Leadership/Talent Management and Engagement

Goal:

The SCA aims to increase the overall staff engagement score by at least four per cent. It also strives to increase
the talent maturity score from 2.6 to 2.8 by March 2020 and the change management maturity index from 1.2
to 2.8 by March 2020.

Actions:

« New hires are surveyed and surveys indicate average-to-high performing ratings in the four key categories:
Hiring Experience, Acclimatization, Training and Development and Defining Performance Expectations
(three average ratings and one high performing rating).

+ Leaders at the SCA are required to complete the Coaching for Engagement course to help create more
connected teams. As of March 31, 92 per cent of current leadership has completed it.

« The annual employee engagement survey indicates positive progress in many areas, and team discussions
will better target actions to benefit groups.

« A committee was established this year to help the SCA move towards a culturally responsive organization
to support the Calls to Action for health in the Truth and Reconciliation Commission (TRC) of Canada’s final
report. The SCA completed TRC mapping facilitated by the Office of The Treaty Commissioner to establish
a baseline. This work will support the development of the plan for a culturally responsive organization and
track the SCA’s progress.

« The SCA has been using the SHA’s Cultivating Cultural Change training program and 260 new and existing
employees have attended Cultivating Cultural Change as of March 31.

The Change Network met quarterly to share different ways change management supports initiatives/
projects.

Results:

Actual engagement scores captured in the annual employee survey increased by seven per cent. The updates
to maturity indices were not completed by end of March as a result of resources redirected to the COVID-19

response.

-13 -



Strategic Plan

BETTER VALUES INITIATIVES

Sustainability

Goal:

Establish a balanced financial position.

Actions:

+ The SCA launched its own version of the provincial advance care plan called My Voice.

« The In-home Inter-professional Palliative Care Virtual Clinic was piloted and involved Community Palliative
Care and Para-medicine.
Serious lliness Conversation (SIC) rollout — 191 physicians and staff trained, triggers for SIC identified & inter-
professional documentation template develop.

Results:

Balanced operating position (audited as at March 31, 2020).
Continuous Improvement

Goal:

Establish a maturity score of 2.36.

Actions:

« The SCA implemented daily visual management practices with the CEO and Vice President of Population
Health, Quality and Research.
Daily visual management training was completed with most Wave 5 participants in Lean Improvement
Leader Training (LILT). Twelve participants were enrolled into Wave 6 of LILT.

+ The Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) program developed an SCA risk registry and risk profile, and began
planning for risk tolerance and appetite statements.
A risk analysis was conducted on the Breast Pathway initiative.

+ Increased awareness of the Safety Management System with the Board, and executive and senior leadership
teams, and started a safety maturity assessment.

Results:

Established and maintained maturity score of 2.36.
Facility Investment

Goal:

Complete a structural assessment and submit recommendations to ELT.

Actions:

« Using the 2018 space assessment at Regina’s Allan Blair Cancer Centre, the SCA completed minor upgrades
to a room on level 0 for multi-use of Pain and Symptom, Head and Neck, and Radiation Therapy teams.
Office space was created for three new gyne-oncologists and one medical oncologist.

«  Workflow improvements were made at the Allan Blair Cancer Centre that include completing the bunker
construction and installation of new Varian 2 Linac, completing installation of the new CT scanner and room
renovations, and leveled and replaced deficient flooring in an office area on level 2.

Results:

The assessment and recommendations have been completed.



Volume Statistics

Number of New Patient

2016-17 201718 201819 2019-20

Appointments

Allan Blair Cancer Centre

- Medical oncology 1425 | 1,395 | 1,733 1,978
- Radiation oncology 1,389 | 1,413 | 1,440 | 1,490
- Pediatric oncology 14 " 9 13

- Hematology 230 272 292 276
Total 3,058 | 3,091 | 3,474 | 3,757
Saskatoon Cancer Centre

- Medical oncology 1,779 | 1,799 | 1,754 | 2,030
- Radiation oncology 1,591 1,590 | 1,693 1,738
- Pediatric oncology 32 43 50 16*
- Hematology 392 429 441 465
Total 3,794 | 3,861 | 3,938 | 4,249
Provincial

- Medical oncology 3,204 | 37194 | 3,487 | 4,008
- Radiation oncology 2980 | 3,003 | 3,133 3,228
- Pediatric oncology 46 54** 59 29

- Hematology 622 701 733 41
Total new patient appointments 6,852 | 6,952 | 7,412 | 8,006

201617 201718 201819 2019-20

Review Patient Appointments

Allan Blair Cancer Centre

- Systemic oncology 17,607 | 18,047 | 19,354 | 20,319
- Radiation oncology 6,021 6,135 | 6,659 | 7,248
- Pediatric oncology 812 719 654 703
Total 24,440 | 24,901 | 26,667 | 28,270
Saskatoon Cancer Centre

- Systemic oncology 20,187 | 21,533 | 22,289 | 24,359
- Radiation oncology 6,829 | 7,004 | 6,575 | 6,337
- Pediatric oncology 1,544 | 1,466 | 1,705 688"
Total 28,560 | 30,003 | 30,569 | 31,384
Provincial

- Systemic oncology 37,794 | 39,580 | 41,643 | 44,678
- Radiation oncology 12,850 | 13,139 | 13,234 | 13,385
- Pediatric oncology 2,356 | 2,185 | 2,359 1,391
Total review appointments 53,000 | 54,904 | 57,236 | 59,654

* Saskatoon Cancer Centre pediatric oncology was moved to the Saskatchewan
Health Authority Jim Pattison Children’s Hospital in 2019.

Chemotherapy Treatments 201617 201718 2018-19 2019-20

*Saskatoon Cancer Centre pediatric oncology was moved to the Saskatchewan :
Health Authority Jim Pattison Children’s Hospital in 2019, Allan Blair Cancer Centre
**Number was incorrectly reported as 64 in 2017-18 annual report. - Treatment visits 9,889 | 9460 | 10,641 | 11,357
- Number of patients 1,258 | 1,295 | 1,410 | 1,542
Radiation Therapy Workload 201617 201718 2018-19 2019-20 Saskatoon Cancer Centre
Allan Blair Cancer Centre - Treatment visits 11,906 | 11,972 | 12,044 | 12,568*
- Treatment sessions started 959 974 1,040 1,077 - Number of patients 1566 | 1,606 | 1,652 | 1,718*
;ggzi(;tl?sr;s (number of treatment 17891 | 17.440 | 18,276 | 17621 Provincial
' ' Total treatment visits 21,795 | 21,432 | 22,685 | 23,925
- Fields (number of beams delivered) | 88,018 | 83,296 | 72,433 | 62,046 Total number of patients 2824 | 2,886™ | 3,062 | 3,260
Saskatoon Cancer Centre Saskatoon G Centre pediati | dtoth
. *Saskatoon Cancer Centre pediatric oncology was moved to the
- Treatment sessions started 1023 | 1045 | 1,049 | 1,234 Saskatchewan Health Authority Jim Pattison Children’s Hospital in 2019.
- Fractions (number of treatment 19148 | 18,520 | 18,999 | 20397 **In 2017-18 some patients were seen at both cancer centres; therefore, the
sessions) provincial total is not the sum of patients seen at each centre.
- Fields (number of beams delivered) | 69,762 | 68,463 | 68,630 | 66,248
Provincial
Total treatment sessions started | 1,982 | 2,019 | 2,089 | 2,311 sl e A e
Total fractions (number of Number of allogeneic transplants 25 14 20 21
treatment sessions) 37,039 | 35,960 | 37,275 | 38,018 Number of autologous transplants 42 40 39 42
Total fields (number of beams Number of patients sent out of
delivered) 157,780 | 151,759 | 141,063 | 128,294 province 0 0 0 0

-15 -




Volume Statistics

2016-17

Q2

QB o

2017-18

Q1 Q2

Q3

2018-19
Q2 Q3

2019-20

Q2

Q3

Number of Days Between Referral and First Appointment (90th percentile)

- Medical oncology 7 79 74 83 83 80 75 70 69 66 73 67 64 76 73 76

- Radiation oncology 48 50 50 58 55 77 58 76 93 68 62 64 58 57 65 65
Number of Days Between Ready to Treat and First Treatment (90th percentile)

- Chemotherapy 11 13 14 13 10 12 11 13 12* 13 14 | 14* 15 14 15 13

- Radiation therapy 17 18 16 18 17 14 17 20 19 16 18 20 20 20 24 22

* Data conditions and limitations: Saskatoon Cancer Centre Q1 - 50% data missing; Q3 - 35% data missing; Q4 - 55% data missing. Data missing due to software and
training conversions, which have since been addressed.

Pharmacy Services

2016-17

201718

2018-19

2019-20

Number of Oral Prescriptions Processed

- Allan Blair Cancer Centre 24,381 24,166 24,628 27,587

- Saskatoon Cancer Centre 32,402 32,953 33,285 35,973
Total 56,783 57,119 57,913 63,560
Number of IV Medications - Inpatient

- Allan Blair Cancer Centre 2,980 2,367 1,847 2,074

- Saskatoon Cancer Centre 4,462 2,945 2,907 2,398
Total 7,442 5,312 4,754 4,472
Number of IV Medications - Outpatient

- Allan Blair Cancer Centre 21,406 20,027 22,083 23,960

- Saskatoon Cancer Centre 25,323 23,864 24,519 27,948
Total 46,729 43,891 46,602 51,908
Number of COPS Orders Dispensed

- Through the Allan Blair Cancer Centre 6,734 5,856 6,301 7,354

- Through the Saskatoon Cancer Centre 7,084 6,480 6,866 8,891
Total 13,818 12,336 13,167 16,245

Community Oncology Program of

Saskatchewan 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
Number of patients 1,899 1,868 2,008 2,057
Number of treatment visits 13,106 12,106 13,514 13,869
Number of kilometres saved in patient travel 4,067,360 3,852,188 4,283,028 4,354,665

Telehealth Appointments

2016-17

2017-18

2018-19

2019-20

Allan Blair Cancer Centre appointments 2,895 3,039 4,232 4,989
Saskatoon Cancer Centre appointments 2,828 3,818 4,918 6,364
Total 5,723 6,857 9,150 11,353
Number of kilometres saved in patient travel

(provincial) 2,295,365 2,748,408 3,595,484 4,521,016

Clinical Trials 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
Number of patients enrolled to a clinical trial 131 150 162 143
Per cent of new patients enrolled 3.4% 3.6% 3.9% 2.9%
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Volume Statistics

Safety 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
Sick leave hours per FTE 67.56 66.22 65.78 65.09
Wage-driven premium hours per FTE 13.59 14.36 10.59 13.11
Lost time workplace injuries per 100 FTEs 0.6 0.59 0.43 0.43
Critical Incidents 2 0 1 1
Ealls 16 patients 12 patients 13 patients 19 patients
13 staff 11 staff 5 staff 10 staff
Total falls 29 23 18 29
Number of Influenza Vaccines 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20
Staff 410 427 450 630

Screening Program for Breast Cancer

Arpil 2016-March 2017

April 2017-March 2018

April 2018-March 2019

April 2019-March 2020

Number of screening mammograms on the mobile unit 8,266 8,973 8,513 8,242
Number of screening mammograms at the Regina centre 11,304 10,732 10,643 9,023
Number of screening mammograms at the Saskatoon centre 8,961 8,684 8,701 8,960
Number of screening mammograms at satellite centres

(Lloydminster, Moose Jaw, North Battleford, Prince Albert, 9,990 9,666 9,699 9,452
Swift Current, Yorkton)

Total 38,521 38,055 37,556 35,677

Participation rate

April 2015-March 2017
40.3%

April 2016-March 2018
39.7%

April 2017-March 2019
39%

April 2018-March 2020
39%

Screening Program for Cervical Cancer

Number of Pap tests completed in the Saskatchewan Health
Authority

Participation rate (non-hysterectomy corrected)

Arpil 2016-March 2017

April 2014-March 2017

April 2017-March 2018

April 2015-March 2018

April 2018-March 2019

April 2016-March 2019

April 2019-March 2020

95,244 94,291 91,649 90,287

April 2017-March 2020

Screening Program for Colorectal Cancer

April 2015-March 2017

April 2016-March 2018

April 2017-March 2019

April 2018-March 2020

Number of pepple who have completed at least one fecal 160,711 158,007 159,367 152,727
immunochemical test (FIT)
Participation rate 51.1% 49.3% 49.3% 46.9%
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Volume Statistics

Total Amount

2019-20 Amount

Agency-Funded Research Grants Researcher Award Period R Awarded

FOLFIRI alternate with FOLFOX in untreated metastatic gastric and .

esophageal adenocarcinoma Dr. Shahid Ahmed 2018-20 $100,138 $45,069

New targets for metastatic breast cancer Dr. Deborah Anderson 2018-20 $200,000 $100,000

Characterization of the cell surface protein GPR112 as a potential Dr. Franco

cancer drug target Vizeacoumar 2018-20 §200,000 §100,000

Therapeutic immunity of heterologous HER2-specific HuRt-Texo

vaccination against transtuzumab-resistant breast cancer in BLT/NSG Dr. Jim Xiang 2018-20 $199,240 $99,620

mice

Beneficial cytotoxic T lymphocytes derived from irreversible PDF Award: R

electroporation ablation of breast cancer Dr. Aizhang Xu 2018-20 $83,000 §42,000
. . - PDF Award:

Exploring the landscape of circular RNA expression in breast cancer Dr. Archana Kumari 2018-20 $83,000 $42,000

Investigating spinal cord normal tissue toxicity in retreatment scenarios

using spatially fractionated microbeam radiotherapy as a leading study | Dr. Andrew Alexander 2019-21 $160,594 $90,941

towards radiation oncology applications

Preclinical evaluation of HDAC inhibitors in combined therapy Dr. Keith Bonham 2019-21 $200,000 $100,000

Machine learning-based auto-segmentation for high-dose-rate Dr. Derek Liu 2019-21 $79,000 $42,000

prostate brachytherapy

Comparison of perioperative chemotherapy versus postoperative

chemoradiation therapy for operable stomach cancer: a retrospective Dr. Adnan Zaidi 2019-20 $36,171 $36,171

population-based cohort study

Understanding the role of circular RNA in triple negative breast cancer PDF. Award: 2019-21 $83,000 $41,000

Dr. Sharmila Narayanan

-18 -



Volume Statistics

Organization

Total Amount

2019-20 Amount

Funded Research Grants Fundinlgrfrﬁceived Researcher Award Period Awarded Awarded
. - Canadian Foundation Dr. Franco
High throughput molecular imaging platform for Innovation Vizeacoumar 2015-20 $1,259,322 $22,668
Distinct regulation of T cell fate and memory via . .
differentially IL-2- and IL-7-activated mTORCA-KIF13A- Caﬂgg:fh”égztg;‘iﬁ o | br. Jim Xiang 2017-21 $480,000 $120,000
M6PR axis and AMPK-FOXO-Eomes pathway
A systematic genome wide effort to identify and . .
validate targetable synthetic dosage lethal interactions Caﬂgg:?hnégztggiﬁ of Vgg;ggﬂ;c;r 2018-23 $592,875 $118,575
of mitotic kinases in cancer cells
Systematic profiling of circular RNAs essential for the | Canadian Institutes of Dr. Franco 2018-23 $573.750 $114.750
survival of cancer cells Health Research Vizeacoumar ' '
College of Medicine, Dr. Deborah
New therapies for triple negative breast cancer University of A'n derson 2019-20 $20,000 $20,000
Saskatchewan
Simulated microgravity blocks osteoblastic .
differentiation and mineralization leading o bone ENnagtf’nré‘Lfﬁ'geEZiZSr”ci Dr. Jim Xiang 2019-24 $180,000 $36,000
loss via suppressing the FAK/RhoA-regulated Wnt Council ' ' '
pathway
Prostate Cancer Fight

Eradication of localized prostate cancer by irreversible | Foundation (PCCF) & L R
electroporation ablation TELUS Ride For Dad Dr. Jim Xiang 2019-20 §40,000 $40,000

(RFD)
Conversion from unresectable to resectable liver
metastases in patients with liver-only metastatic Canadian Institutes of Dr. Shahid
colorectal cancer treated with FOLFOXIRI plus Health Research Ahmed 2019-22 $100,000 326,618
bevacizumab. The Conversion Trial
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Financial Summary

In 2019-20, the Cancer Agency received revenues of $198.208 million and incurred expenditures of $198.991
million resulting in an excess of expenses over revenues of ($.783 million). The following chart gives a
breakdown of the total expenditures in 2019-20.

Expenditures on

Research Grants Expenditures
$735,778 from
Capital 0.4% Donations
Amortization/Other $747,484
$3,705,957 0.4%

1.8%

Expenditures

on Operations

$193,801,970
97.4%

In 2019-20, the Cancer Agency funded and implemented 11 new oncology drug programs, 13 new indications
for existing drugs and two biosimilar drugs. Biosimilar oncology drugs are new to the Canadian oncology
market, highly similar to another approved oncology biologic drug which has gone off-patent, and less
expensive. All of the new drugs/indications were reviewed and recommended by the pan-Canadian Oncology
Drug Review (pCODR). These drugs/indications were then negotiated by the pan-Canadian Pharmaceutical
Alliance (pCPA).

Advances in cancer treatments and technology continue to emerge, which create pressure to acquire new
equipment. The annual planning process for capital equipment helps us to identify the highest priority areas
for allocation of capital funding and to communicate funding needs to the Ministry of Health.

In 2019-20, the Cancer Agency worked toward the next scheduled replacement of a linear accelerator
treatment machine at the Allan Blair Cancer Centre. The new machine was installed in 2019-20 and began
treating patients in April 2020.

A replacement of a computed tomography scanner (CT scanner) for the Allan Blair Cancer Centre was also
completed in 2019-20. The CT scanner replacement at the Saskatoon Cancer Centre is also underway and will
be completed in 2020-21. The replacement of the CT scanners including associated renovations was the first
major fundraising campaign launched by the Cancer Foundation of Saskatchewan, in early 2019-20.



Management Report

The accompanying financial statements are the responsibility of management and are approved by the
Saskatchewan Cancer Agency Board of Directors. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards and of necessity include amounts based on estimates and
judgments. The financial information presented in the annual report is consistent with the financial statements.

Management maintains appropriate systems of internal control, including policies and procedures, which
provide reasonable assurance that the Cancer Agency'’s assets are safeguarded and the financial records are
relevant and reliable.

The Saskatchewan Cancer Agency Board of Directors delegates the responsibility of reviewing the financial
statements and overseeing management’s performance in financial reporting to the Audit Committee

of the board. The Audit Committee meets with management to discuss and review financial matters and
recommends the financial statements to the Cancer Agency for approval. The Cancer Agency approves the
annual report and, with the recommendation of the Audit Committee, approves the financial statements.

The appointed auditor conducts an independent audit of the financial statements and has full and open access
to the Audit Committee. The auditor’s report expresses an opinion on the fairness of the financial statements
prepared by management.

G AE g

Dr. Jon Tonita Margaret Lewis
President and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

May 20, 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report

PROVINCIAL AUDITOR
of Saskatchewan

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To: The Members of the Legislative Assembly of Saskatchewan
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Saskatchewan Cancer Agency, which comprise the statement of
financial position as at March 31, 2020, and the statement of operations, statement of changes in net financial assets
(debt) and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Saskatchewan Cancer Agency as at March 31, 2020, and the results of its operations, changes in its net financial
assets (debt), and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of Saskatchewan Cancer Agency in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards for Treasury Board's approval, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from matenal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Saskatchewan Cancer Agency’s
ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concemn basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Saskatchewan Cancer Agency or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Saskatchewan Cancer Agency’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a matenal misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered matenal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

»  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those nisks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

1500-1920 Broad Street, Regina, SK 84P 3V2
t 306787.6398 f 306787.6383 e info@auditorsk.ca
Y www.anditor.sk.ca
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PROVINCIAL AUDITOR
of Saskatchewan

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropnate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Saskatchewan Cancer Agency’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

# Conclude on the appropnateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Saskatchewan Cancer Agency's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Saskatchewan Cancer Agency to cease to continue as a going concemn.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying fransactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control identified during the

audit.
Regina, Saskatchewan Judy Ferguson, FCPA, FCA
May 20, 2020 Provincial Auditor

Office of the Provincial Auditor

1500-1920 Broad Streer, Regina, SK 84P 3vV2
t 306787.6398 f 306.787.6383 e info@auditorsk.ca
Y www.auditor.sk.ca
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2019-20 Financial Statements

Statement 1

SASKATCHEWAN CANCER AGENCY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at March 31
2020 2019

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 5748417  §$ 12,912,026

Accounts receivable:

- Ministry of Health — General Revenue Fund 270,000 270,000
- Other 9,170,913 7,521,952

Loan Receivable (Note 13) - 250,000
Total Financial Assets $ 15,189,330  § 20,953,978
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable $ 10,046,407 $§ 10,290,509

Accrued salaries 2,493,922 1,950,027

Vacation payable 1,775,544 1,167,016

Deferred revenue (Note 7) 130,373 92,321

Employee future benefits (Note 8) 2,863,100 2,714,300
Total Liabilities 17,309,346 16,214,173
NET FINANCIAL ASSETS (DEBT) (2,120,016) 4,739,805
NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Tangible capital assets (Note 4) 26,056,409 23,266,672

Inventory held for use 12,512,199 9,281,626

Prepaid expenses 940,471 884,009
Total Non-Financial Assets 39,509,079 33,432,307
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS $ 37,389,063 $ 38,172,112

Contractual Obligations (Note 5)

gt st by

Ron Waschuk Howard Crofts, FCPA FCA
Board Chair Finance and Audit Committee Chair

(The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.)
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Statement 2
SASKATCHEWAN CANCER AGENCY
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the Year Ended March 31
Budget
2020 2020 2019
(Note 11)
REVENUES
Ministry of Health $ 181,780,000 193,614,225 § 175,386,154
Grants 1,520,749 1,280,790 1,161,317
Donations 444 817 1,318,830 1,718,817
Investment income 223,500 364,627 295,324
Other revenues 1,783,125 1,629,668 2,480,294
185,752,191 198,208,140 181,041,906
EXPENSES (Schedule 2)
Clinical services 38,597,299 40,303,942 36,439,448
Care services 37,436,386 37,400,323 36,611,882
Pharmacy & drugs 74,434,679 81,174,022 72,682,568
Population health 16,156,322 16,455,989 16,868,704
Research 1,071,563 1,083,471 1,102,328
Corporate services 15,878,191 15,924,425 15,474,705
Other 4,565,892 6,649,017 6,993,944
188,140,332 198,991,189 186,173,579
Annual (deficit) (2,388,141) (783,049) (5,131,673)
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 38,172,112 38,172,112 43,303,785
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, END OF YEAR $ 35,783,971 37,389,063 $ 38,172,112

(The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.)
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SASKATCHEWAN CANCER AGENCY

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS (DEBT)

Annual (deficit) (Statement 2)

Net acquisition of tangible capital assets (Note 4)
Amortization of tangible capital assets (Note 4)
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets

Net consumption of inventory
Net (increase) decrease in prepaid expenses

CHANGE IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS (DEBT)
NET FINANCIAL ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET FINANCIAL ASSETS (DEBT), END OF YEAR

Statement 3
For the Year Ended March 31
Budget
2020 2020 2019
(Note 11)

$ (2,388,141) (783,049) § (5,131,673)
(12,294,351) (6,495,694) (2,066,816)
4,000,000 3,604,274 3,740,662
- 101,683 136,420
(10,682,492) (3,572,786) (3,321,407)
- (3,230,573) (448,205)
- (56,462) 300,820
(10,682,492) (6,859,821) (3,468,792)
4,739,805 4,739,805 8,208,597
$ (5,942,687) (2,120,016) § 4,739,805

(The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.)
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Statement 4
SASKATCHEWAN CANCER AGENCY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended March 31
2020 2019
Cash provided by (used in):
Operating Activities:
Annual (deficit) (Statement 2) $ (783,049) $  (5131,673)
Net change in non-cash working capital (Note 3) (3,590,823) (2,092,438)
Amortization of tangible capital assets (Note 4) 3,604,274 3,740,662
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets 101,683 136,420
(667,915) (3,347,029)
Capital activities:
Purchase of tangible capital assets (6,495,694) (2,066,816)
(6,495,694) (2,066,816)
Investing Activities:
Purchase of investments -
Disposal of investments 1,415,000
1,415,000
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the year (7,163,609) (3,998,845)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 12,912,026 16,910,871
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 5,748,417 $ 12,912,026

(The accompanying notes and schedules are part of these financial statements.)
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SASKATCHEWAN CANCER AGENCY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at March 31, 2020

1. Legislative Authority

The Saskatchewan Cancer Foundation commenced operations on August 1, 1979 under the provisions of The
Cancer Foundation Act. Effective January 2, 2007, it continued as a corporation under the name of the Saskatchewan
Cancer Agency (Cancer Agency), pursuant to The Cancer Agency Act. The Cancer Agency is responsible for the
planning, organization, delivery and evaluation of cancer care services throughout Saskatchewan in collaboration
with the Saskatchewan Health Authority and health care organizations.

The Cancer Agency is a not-for-profit organization and is not subject to income and property taxes from the
federal, provincial and municipal levels of government.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

A statement of remeasurement gains and losses has not been presented in these financial statements because all
financial instruments carrying value approximates their fair value.

a) Basis of accounting

These financial statements are prepared by management in accordance with Canadian Public Sector
Accounting (PSA) Standards.

b) Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognized in the period in which the transactions or events occurred that gave rise to the
revenues. All revenues are recorded on an accrual basis, except when the accruals cannot be determined with a
reasonable degree of certainty or when their estimation is impracticable.

Government transfers (operating grants from the Ministry of Health) are recognized as revenues when the
transfer is authorized, any eligibility criteria are met and a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made
except to the extent that transfer stipulations give rise to an obligation that meets the definition of a liability.
Transfers are recognized as deferred revenue when transfer stipulations give rise to a liability. Transfer revenue
is recognized in the statement of operations as the stipulation liabilities are settled.

Contributions from other sources (grants) are deferred when restrictions are placed on their use by the
contributor and are recognized as revenue when used for the specified purpose when eligibility criteria are
met.

Unrestricted contributions and pledges are recognized as revenue when received. Gifts-in-kind are recorded at
the fair market value on the date of their donation if they meet the Cancer Agency’s criteria for capitalization.

Investment income includes interest recorded on an accrual basis and realized gains and losses on the sale
of investments. For investment assets recorded at fair value, unrealized gains and losses are recorded on the
statement of remeasurement gains and losses until settlement.

Other revenues include recoveries for insurance reports or salaries, room rental and meals at the cancer patient
lodges, and charges to non-residents. These are recognized as revenue when received.

¢) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with financial institutions which have an initial term to maturity
of 90 days or less. Balances are recorded at fair value.
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d) Loans receivable

Loans receivable are recorded at amortized cost less any amounts for valuation allowance. Valuation
allowances are made to reflect loans receivable at the lower of amortized cost and the net recoverable value,
when collectability and risk of loss exists. Changes in valuation allowance are recognized in the statement of
operations. Interest is accrued on loans receivable to the extent it is deemed collectable.

e) Investments

Investments are recorded at par value plus or minus the amortization of premium or discount remaining in the
life of the bond. During the period presented, there were no unrestricted investment assets measured at fair
value and therefore no unrealized gains and losses on unrestricted investment assets.

f) Inventory held for use

Inventory consists of chemotherapy drugs valued at cost as determined using the average cost method.
Inventory is expensed as it is consumed or used and it is held at the lower of net realizable value or cost as
determined on a weighted average basis.

g) Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost. Normal maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred.
Tangible capital assets, with a life exceeding one year, are amortized on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives once the asset is put into service as follows:

Buildings 20 years

Leasehold improvements 3 -20 years

Equipment and furniture 4 - 15 years

Donated tangible capital assets are recorded at their fair value at the date of contribution if readily
determinable, otherwise they are recorded at nominal value.

Tangible capital assets included in work in progress are not amortized until put into service.

h) Non-financial assets

Tangible capital assets, prepaid expenses and other non-financial assets are accounted for as assets because
they can be used to provide services in future periods. These assets do not normally provide resources to
discharge liabilities unless they are sold.

i) Employee future benefits
(i) Pension plan:

Employees of the Cancer Agency participate in a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan or a multi-
employer defined contribution plan. The Cancer Agency follows defined contribution plan accounting for
its participation in these plans. Accordingly, the Cancer Agency expenses all contributions it is required to
make in the year.

(i) Disability income plan:

Out-of-scope employees of the Cancer Agency participate in a disability income plan to provide wage-

loss insurance due to a disability. The Cancer Agency follows post-employment benefits accounting for its
participation in the plans. Accordingly, the Cancer Agency expenses all contributions it is required to make
in the year. In-scope employees of the Cancer Agency also participate in a disability income plan to provide
wage-loss insurance due to a disability. This plan is administered through the Saskatchewan Government
and General Employees’ Union and the Cancer Agency has no financial obligation for the plan.
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(iii) Accumulated sick leave benefit liability:

The Cancer Agency provides sick leave benefits for employees that accumulate but do not vest. The
Cancer Agency recognizes a liability and an expense for sick leave in the period in which employees render
services in return for the benefits. The liability and expense is developed using an actuarial cost method.
Actuarial gains and losses are amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected average remaining
service life of the related employee groups.

j) Measurement uncertainty

These financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles. In the preparation of financial statements, management makes various
estimates and assumptions in determining the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and
expenses, and in the disclosure of commitments and contingencies. Changes in estimates and assumptions will
occur based on the passage of time and the occurrence of certain future events. The changes will be reported
in the period in which they become known. Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions
include the accrual of payroll and benefit costs, accrual of costs for services provided by the Saskatchewan
Health Authority and the estimates of the useful lives of tangible capital assets.

k) Financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued salaries and vacation payable
are classified in the fair value category. Gains and losses on these financial instruments are recognized in the
Statement of Operations.

Financial assets in the fair value category are marked-to-market by reference to their quoted bid price.

Investments are valued at par value plus or minus the amortization of premium or discount remaining in the
life of the bond. Sales and purchases of investments are recorded on the trade date. Investments consist of
guaranteed investment certificates and long-term bonds bearing interest at coupon rates. Transaction costs
related to the acquisition of investments are expensed.

I) Leases

Leases are accounted for as operating leases with contractual obligations disclosed in Note 5.

m) New accounting standards in effect

A number of new Canadian public sector accounting standards and amendments to standards are not yet
effective for governments and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. The following
standards will come into effect as follows:

(i) PS 3280 Asset Retirement Obligations (effective April 1, 2021), a new standard establishing guidance on
the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of a liability for retirement of a tangible capital
asset.

(i) PS 3400 Revenue (effective April 1, 2022) a new standard establishing guidance on the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of revenue.
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3. Net Change in Non-Cash Working Capital

2020 2019
(Increase) in accounts receivable $ (1,648961) $ (1,667,406)
Decrease (increase) in loan receivable 250,000 (250,000)
(Increase) in inventory held for use (3,230,573) (448,205)
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (56,462) 300,820
Decrease in investments - 2,501
(Decrease) in accounts payable (244,102) (20,124)
Increase in accrued salaries 543,895 180,026

Increase (decrease) in vacation payable 608,528 (303,190)
Increase in deferred revenue

38,052 7,540

Increase in employee future benefits 148,800 105,600
$ (3,590,823) § (2,092,438)

4. Tangible Capital Assets

Land and Leasehold Equipment and
Improvements Buildings Improvements Furniture 2020 2019

Cost, beginning of year $ 280,297 § 25691,908 § 19,162,492 § 47,814,063 § 92,948,760 § 91,168,665
Additions - 160,272 1,145,731 5,189,691 6,495,694 2,358,466
Adjustments - 11,029 (11,029) - - (291,650)
Disposals - - (909,644) (2,968,922) (3,878,566) (286,721)
Cost, end of year 280,297 25,863,209 19,387,550 50,034,832 95,565,388 92,948,760
Accumulated amortization, beginning of year - 20,987,595 14,148,000 34,546,493 69,682,088 66,091,727
Amortization - 453,842 706,426 2,444,006 3,604,274 3,740,662
Adjustments - (597) 597 - - -

Disposals - - (891,875) (2,885,008) (3,776,883) (150,301)
Accumulated amortization, end of year - 21,440,840 13,963,148 34,105,491 69,509,479 69,682,088
Net Book Value $ 280,297 ¢ 4422369 ¢ 5424402 ¢ 15929341 ¢ 26,056,409 § 23,266,672

Work in progress amount included in the assets above is $1,133,998 (2019 - $425,521).

5. Contractual Obligations
a) Tangible Capital Asset Acquisitions

At March 31, 2020, contractual obligations for acquisition of tangible capital assets are $1,392,480 (2019 -
$1,123,441).

b) Operating Leases

Minimum annual payments under operating leases on property over the next five years are as follows:

2021 2,024,893
2022 2,024,893
2023 1,979,596
2024 1,481,329
2025 1,483,599
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¢) Contracted Health Services Operators

The Cancer Agency continues to contract on an ongoing basis with the Saskatchewan Health Authority

to provide some services such as lab tests, diagnostic radiology, housekeeping and maintenance services.
Services provided in the year ending March 31, 2020 will continue to be contracted for the following fiscal
year. In the year ended March 31, 2020, the Cancer Agency contracted services amounting to $9,142,399 (2019 -
$8,217,355).

6. Cancer Patient Lodges

The Canadian Cancer Society, Saskatchewan Division (Society), previously donated two cancer patient lodges in
the Province to the Cancer Agency. Under the terms of an agreement with the Society, the Cancer Agency has
assumed responsibility for the operations of these lodges. Prior to March 31, 2020, the Cancer Agency discontinued
providing lodge services at the Saskatoon location and has temporarily moved to an alternate location (Parkville
Manor) to provide lodge services. The Cancer Agency is currently working with the Canadian Cancer Society (CCS)
on the impact of this change on the obligation to transfer title of the Saskatoon lodge property to CCS under the
agreement and to provide for a long-term permanent solution to the Saskatoon lodge.

7. Deferred Revenue

Balance

Beginning of Less Amount Add Amount Balance End of
As at March 31, 2020 Year Recognized Received Year
Government of Saskatchewan Initiatives
3sHealth - Smart Pump Program $ 44 887 $ 14,962 $ - $ 29,925
Total Other Government of Saskatchewan 44,887 14,962 - 29,925
Non-Government of Saskatchewan Initiatives
Other revenue received in advance 47,434 - 53,014 100,448
Total Non-Government of Saskatchewan 47,434 - 53,014 100,448
Total Deferred Revenue $ 92,321 $ 14,962 $ 53,014 $ 130,373

8. Employee Future Benefits

a) Pension Plan
Employees of the Cancer Agency participate in one of the following pension plans:

(i) Public Employees Pension Plan (PEPP) is a defined contribution pension plan and is the responsibility of the
Government of Saskatchewan. The Cancer Agency's financial obligation to the plan is limited to making
required payments to match the amount contributed by the employees for current services. Pension
expense for the year is included in salaries and employee benefits in Schedule 2.
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(ii) Saskatchewan Healthcare Employees’ Pension Plan (SHEPP) is jointly governed by a board of eight trustees.
Four of the trustees are appointed by the Health Shared Services Saskatchewan (3sHealth) (a related party)
and four of the trustees are appointed by Saskatchewan'’s health care unions (CUPE, SUN, SEIU, SGEU,
RWDSU and HSAS). SHEPP is a multi-employer defined benefit plan, which came into effect December
31, 2002. The Cancer Agency’s financial obligation to the plan is limited to making required payments to
match the amount contributed by the employees for current services at a ratio of 1.12 to 1. Pension plan
contribution rates have increased as a result of deficiencies in SHEPP. Any actuarially determined deficiency
is the responsibility of participating employers and employees in the ratio of 1.12 to 1. Contribution rates
will continue to increase until the next actuarial reports are completed. Pension expense for the year is
included in salaries and employee benefits in Schedule 2. The last actuarial valuation was performed on
December 31, 2017.

2020 2019
SHEPP PEPP Total Total
Number of active members 108 735 843 830
Member contribution rate, percentage of salary 8.10%-10.70% 7.6%
Cancer Agency contribution rate, percentage of salary 9.07%-11.98% 7.6%
Member contributions (thousands of dollars) $542 $3,909 $4.451 $4.416
Cancer Agency contributions (thousands of dollars) $607 $3,911 $4,518 $4,474

Active members are employees of the Cancer Agency, including those on leave of absence as of March 31,
2020. Inactive members are not reported by the Agency.

Disability Income Plans
Employees of the Cancer Agency participate in the following disability income plans:

PEBA - Disability income plan for out-of-scope staff, administered by the Public Employees Benefits Agency.
The Cancer Agency'’s financial obligation to this plan is limited to making the required payments to the

plan according to the applicable agreement. Disability expense for the PEBA plan is included in salaries and
employee benefits in Schedule 2 and is equal to the contribution amount below.

SGEU - Disability income plan for in-scope staff, administered by the Saskatchewan Government and General
Employees’ Union. The Cancer Agency has no financial obligation for this plan.

2020 2019
PEBA SGEU Total Total
Number of active members 168 720 888 875
Member contribution rate, percentage of salary 0.97% 1.50%
Cancer Agency contribution rate, percentage of salary 1.17% 0%
Member contributions (thousands of dollars) $277 $591 $868 $856
Cancer Agency contributions (thousands of dollars) $278 $278 $275
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¢) Accumulated Sick Leave Liability

The cost of the accrued benefit obligations related to sick leave entitlement earned by employees is actuarially
determined using the projected benefit method prorated on service and management'’s best estimate of
inflation, discount rate, employee demographics and sick leave usage of active employees. The Cancer Agency
has completed an actuarial valuation as of March 31, 2016 with an estimated valuation to March 31, 2020. Key
assumptions used as inputs into the actuarial calculation are as follows:

2020 2019
Discount rate (per annum) 2.20% 2.50%
Percentage earnings increase (per annum)
For ages 15 t0 29 2.00% 2.00%
For ages 30 to 39 1.50% 1.50%
For ages 40 to 49 1.00% 1.00%
For ages 50 to 59 0.50% 0.50%
For ages 60 and over 0.00% 0.00%
Termination rates (sample rates)
Age 20 0.048 0.048
Age 25 0.041 0.041
Age 30 0.039 0.039
Age 35 0.037 0.037
Age 40 0.029 0.029
Age 45 0.025 0.025
Age 50 0.024 0.024
Age 55 0.027 0.027
Age 60 0.027 0.027
2020 2019

Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year $ 2,714,300 $ 2,608,700

Cost for the year

Current period benefit costs 429,100 351,300
Interest expense 79,800 71,200
Actuarial (gains) losses 39,400 1,800
Benefits paid during the year (399,500) (318,700)
Accrued benefit obligation, end of year $ 2,863,100 $ 2,714,300

9. Related Party Transactions

These financial statements include transactions with related parties. The Cancer Agency is related to all
Saskatchewan Crown Agencies such as ministries, corporations, boards and commissions under the common
control of the Government of Saskatchewan. Related parties also include key management personnel and their
close family members, as well as entities controlled by or under shared control of a key management personnel or
their close family member.

Transactions with these related parties are in the normal course of operations. Amounts due to or from and the
recorded amounts of transactions resulting from these transactions are included in the financial statements. Drugs
and purchased hospital services acquired from related parties are recorded at rates agreed to by the related parties
and are at amounts that would be the same had they have been at arm’s length.
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The Cancer Agency has two physical locations where it provides cancer treatment services, the Allan Blair Cancer
Centre (ABCC) and the Saskatoon Cancer Centre. The building premises occupied by ABCC are leased from the
Saskatchewan Health Authority (SHA) for a nominal amount, including a portion of occupancy costs (which would
be assessed during the normal course of operations). The Cancer Agency and the SHA are considered related
through their common control by the Government of Saskatchewan.

10. Financial Instruments
a) Significant Terms and Conditions

There are no significant terms and conditions related to financial instruments classified as assets or liabilities
that may affect the amount, timing and certainty of future cash flows. Significant terms and conditions for
other financial instruments are disclosed separately in these financial statements.

b) Financial Risk Management

The Board ensures that the Cancer Agency has identified its major risks and ensures that management
monitors and controls them. The Board oversees the Cancer Agency’s systems and practices of internal control
and ensures that these controls contribute to the assessment and mitigation of risk.

The Cancer Agency has exposure to the following risk from its use of financial instruments: credit risk, market
risk and liquidity risk.

c¢) CreditRisk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the
other party to incur a financial loss. The Cancer Agency is exposed to credit risk from potential non-payment
of accounts receivable. The majority of the Agency’s receivables are from the Ministry of Health — General
Revenue Fund, other government organizations or suppliers with which the Agency has ongoing contractual
relations. Therefore, the credit risk on accounts receivable is minimal. The Cancer Agency is also exposed to
credit risk from cash and cash equivalents and investments.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure as follows:

2020 2019
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5748417  § 12,912,026
Accounts receivable
Ministry of Health - General Revenue Fund 270,000 270,000
Other 9,170,913 7,771,952

$ 15,189,330  § 20,953,978

The Cancer Agency manages its credit risk surrounding cash and cash equivalents and investments by
dealing solely with reputable banks and financial institutions and using an investment policy to guide their
investment decisions. The Cancer Agency invests surplus funds to earn investment income with the objective
of maintaining safety of principal and providing adequate liquidity to meet cash flow requirements.

Management reviews accounts receivable to determine if a valuation amount is necessary to reflect
impairment in collectability. For March 31, 2020, the Cancer Agency does not deem one as necessary.
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Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that market prices, such as foreign exchange rates or interest rates, will affect the Cancer
Agency'’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management
is to control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters while optimizing return on investment.

(i) Foreign exchange risk:

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value of financial instruments denominated in a foreign
currency will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Cancer Agency operates within
Canada, but in the normal course of operations is party to transactions denominated in foreign currencies.
Foreign exchange risk arises from transactions denominated in a currency other than the Canadian dollar,
which is the functional currency of the Cancer Agency. The Cancer Agency believes that it is not subject to
significant foreign exchange risk from its financial instruments.

(ii) Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows or a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in the market interest rates.

Financial assets and financial liabilities with variable interest rates expose the Cancer Agency to cash flow
interest rate risk. The Cancer Agency'’s investments include guaranteed investment certificates and bonds
bearing interest at coupon rates.

Although management monitors exposure to interest rate fluctuations, it does not employ any interest rate
management policies to counteract interest rate fluctuations.

As of March 31, 2020, had prevailing interest rates increased or decreased by 1%, assuming a parallel shift
in the yield curve, with all other variables held constant, the Cancer Agency'’s financial instruments would
have decreased or increased by approximately $151,893 (2019 - $209,539).

(iii

=

Liquidity risk:
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Cancer Agency will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
become due. The Cancer Agency manages liquidity risk by continually monitoring actual and forecasted

cash flows from operations and from anticipated investing and financing activities. At March 31, 2020, the
Cancer Agency has a cash and cash equivalents balance of $5,748,417 (2019 - $12,912,026).

Fair value:

~

(iv
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial
instrument:

«  The carrying amounts of these financial instruments approximate fair value due to theirimmediate or
short-term nature.
+  Accounts receivable
« Accounts payable
« Accrued salaries and vacation payable

«  Cashisrecorded at fair value. Investments are recorded at par value plus or minus the amortization of
premium or discount remaining in the life of the bond.

Determination of fair value:

When the carrying amount of a financial instrument is the most reasonable approximation of fair value,
reference to market quotations and estimation techniques is not required. The carrying values of cash and
cash equivalents, investments, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximated their fair values
due to the short-term maturity of these financial instruments.
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As at March 31, 2020, the Cancer Agency does not have any outstanding contracts or financial instruments
with embedded derivatives (2019 — none). Financial assets are categorized as level 1 in the fair value
hierarchy and have not changed from the prior year.

Budget
The 2019-20 budget plan was approved by the Cancer Agency’s Board of Directors on May 31, 2019.
Collective Bargaining Agreement

The Saskatchewan Government and General Employees’ Union (SGEU) collective bargaining agreement expired
on March 31, 2018. Negotiations continue to be under way with SGEU and any potential impact on these financial
statements is not determinable.

Cancer Foundation of Saskatchewan

In 2017-18, the Cancer Foundation of Saskatchewan (Foundation), an arms-length foundation, was incorporated
under The Non-Profit Corporations Act and is a registered charity under The Income Tax Act. This Foundation will
support the Cancer Agency by raising funds for capital equipment, patient comfort items and other priority needs.
The Foundation officially launched in January 2019. The Cancer Agency provided the Foundation with a $250,000
loan from unreceipted pharmaceutical donations during 2017-18 to enable the Foundation to meet preliminary
obligations. The loan was advanced on commercial terms repayable to the Cancer Agency.

In 2019-20, the Board of the Agency approved forgiveness of the loan to the Foundation. The Agency expensed the
amount of the loan through other expenses.

2020 2019
$ - § 250,000

Loan receivable to the Cancer Foundation was forgiven during the
2019-20 fiscal year.

Subsequent Events

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of novel coronavirus (COVID-19) as a
pandemic which continues to spread throughout Canada. On March 18, 2020, the Government of Saskatchewan
declared a provincial state of emergency due to the pandemic. The COVID-19 pandemic is complex and rapidly
evolving and will have a major impact on the health sector and the Cancer Agency.

The duration and impact of the COVID-19 pandemic is unknown at this time, as is the effectiveness of government
interventions. Consequently, an estimate cannot be made of the potential impact of this uncertainty on the Cancer
Agency.

Comparative Information

Certain of the comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the financial statement presentation
adopted in the current year.
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Schedule 1
SASKATCHEWAN CANCER AGENCY
SCHEDULE OF BOARD MEMBER REMUNERATION
For the Year Ended March 31, 2020
2020 2019
Travel and
Travel Time Sustenance

Board Members Retainer Per Diem Expenses Expenses Total " Total
Board Chair:

Waschuk, Ronald $ 9960 $ 5550 § 4125 § 8,003 § 27638 |§ 32,377
Board Members:

Crofts, Howard - 4,375 500 1,707 6,582 4,175

Finnie, Doug - 2,763 300 1,278 4,341 7,778

Streelasky, Dr. Walter - 3,463 1,563 3,836 8,862 9,564

Ravis, Don - 3,225 931 2,405 6,561 8,006

Ahmed, Zeba ? - - - - - 874

Chabot, Lionel - 2,438 1,025 2,190 5,653 5,616

Stang, Frances - 2,875 2,188 4,189 9,252 8,682

Scott, Kelly ® - 1,238 450 766 2,454 -
Total $ 9960 § 25927 § 11,082 § 24374  §$ 71,343 1§ 77,072

(1) Board Member remuneration will fluctuate from member to member based on the number of meetings and conferences that they attend.
The level of remuneration per member will also be affected by the location of these events, as members are resident in various areas
throughout the province.

(2) Zeba Ahmed resigned from the Board on February 26, 2019.
(3) Kelly Scott was appointed to the Board on August 1, 2019.
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Schedule 1
SASKATCHEWAN CANCER AGENCY
SCHEDULE OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION, BENEFITS AND ALLOWANCES
For the Year Ended March 31, 2020
2020 2019
Benefits
and
Senior Employees Salaries'” Allowances" Total Total
Dr. Jon Tonita, Chief Executive Officer $ 258117 § 7591 § 265708 |$ 257,763
Dr. Monica Behl, Senior Medical Officer 261,002 - 261,002 504,097
Dr. Shazia Mahmood, Vice-President, Medical Services © 248,210 - 248,210 -
Deb Bulych, Vice-President Care Services 194,909 - 194,909 185,066
Kevin Wilson, Vice-President, Population Health, Quality & Research 201,270 825 202,095 176,329
Ron Dufresne, Vice-President, Corporate Services ©! 185,176 - 185,176 10,735
Lauren Donnelly, Vice-President, Corporate Services - 825 825 197,723
Total $ 1348684 § 9241 § 1357,925|% 1,331,713

(1) Salaries include regular base pay, overtime, honoraria, sick leave, vacation leave, merit or performance pay, lumpsum payments and any other
direct cash remuneration.

(2) Benefits and allowances include the employer's share of amounts paid for the employees' benefits and allowances that are taxable to the
employee. This includes taxable professional development, education for personal interest, non-accountable relocation benefits, personal use of: an
automobile, cell phone, computer, etc., as well as any other taxable benefits.

(3) Dr. Monica Behl retired from the Agency on September 30, 2019.
(4) Kevin Wilson became the Vice-President, Population Health, Quality & Research as of April 30, 2018.

(5) Lauren Donnelly retired from the Agency on March 29, 2019. Ron Dufresne became the Vice-President, Corporate Services as of March 11, 2019.
A payment was made to her in April, 2019 for allowable expenses incurred prior to March 31, 2019.

(6) Dr. Shazia Mahmood became Vice-President, Medical Services, on September 30, 2019.
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Schedule 2
SASKATCHEWAN CANCER AGENCY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES BY OBJECT
For the Year Ended March 31, 2020
Budget
2020 2020 2019
(Note 11) (Note 15)
EXPENSES
Salaries and employee benefits $ 98,902,900 100,753,819 95,059,529
Drugs and medical supplies 67,730,153 74,116,466 66,342,804
Amortization 4,000,000 3,604,274 3,740,662
Other expenses 3,764,421 6,782,098 7,140,831
Purchased services 2,914,200 2,741,118 2,748,775
Professional fees 2,535,936 2,140,971 2,148,346
Repairs and maintenance 2,233,723 2,431,308 2,572,614
Office supplies and other office costs 2,105,657 2,156,835 2,241,776
Rent of buildings 1,910,825 2,205,497 1,886,696
Clinical and other supplies 958,909 904,377 995,945
Research grants 763,801 735,778 838,558
Housekeeping and laundry 319,807 316,965 314,623
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - 101,683 136,420
$ 188,140,332 198,991,189 186,173,579
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Personal Services

Payee Disclosure List

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Listed are individuals who received payments for salaries, wages, honorariums, etc., which total $50,000 or more.

Abbs-West, Jenelle
Aboukodoud, Dania
Adam, Lisa
Adegboyega, Lawal
Ahmad, Nazir
Ahmed, Shahid
Alexander, Andrew
Alexander, Marrissa
Ali, Magdi

Allan, Joyce

Allen, Joanne
Almasi, Karen
Alport, Lisa

Altieri, Breanna
Alton, Sara

Alvi, Riaz

Alvi, Saima
Anderson, Deborah
Andreas, J. Joe
Amold, Kaitlin

Ash, Cassandra
Ash, Sheila

Asif, Tehmina
Aspen, Rebecca
Athwal, Jagpreet
Auditor, Ericka
Babiy, Patricia
Baender, Darren
Bailey, Richelle
Baisley, Julie-Ann
Baker, Sara
Barilla, Tammy
Barlow, Stacy
Barnardo, Christopher
Basey, Kimberly
Basiove, Mitchell
Beaule, Cindy
Beckett, Craig
Beebe, Larae

Behl, Monica
Belhumeur, Kim
Belitski, Renee
Belous, Janice

$ 9232720 Bernauer, Sandra
54.690.73 Berzolla, Wayne
116,343.23 Bhowmik, Debashish
74,489 84 Bilash, Tristan
254,152.11 Bitz, Denise
439,306 57 Black, Megan
147,061.20 Blackwell, Maitland
50,604.97 Blazeiko, Courtney
32847913 Blazeiko, Jonathan
70,122.73 Boehm, Darryl
89,106.79 Boehm, Deborah
89,863.16 Bolt, Rachel
108,034 10 Bonham, Keith
76,405.58 Bonnell, Gabriel
79,741.36 Bortis, Janelle
122 30941 Bosch, Brennan
247 681.26 Bosch, Mark
18462510 Boutilier, Bethany
115,829.71 Boyko, Riley
75,893.96 Brad Richards, Laurie
53,997 56 Bradbumn, Shelan
65,257 49 Bradel, Theresa
438,598 45 Braun, Nicole
135.250.80 Brecht, Ronald
81,71045 Brenzil, Marene
79,836.07 Briggs, Sheri
52,957 38 Britton, Aleksandr
57,605.13 Brockman, Rhonda
76,505 68 Broley, Chandra
94 56505 Brose, Kelsey
88.831.51 Brown, Jessica
58,875.66 Brown, Shardelle
54,782 87 Browne, Kara
92,331.51 Brunet, Bryan
5217912 Budz, Denise
69,169.69 Bulych, Deborah
62,620.24 Bunko, Ada
195,809.03 Burke, Chrisfine
74,139.09 Burks, Amber
261,002 24 Byblow, Sandra
85,195.88 Campbell, Lorna
137,783.48 Carr, Michelle

88,045.41 Carrington, Renee
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72,814.30
94,865.50
60,063.66
81.636.64
54,591.19
89,653.56
88.765.03
90,06540
88.678.96
145,040.66
74,044 47
98.001.47
155,498 .24
67.724.81
8398813
98.615.58
451,184.33
68.640.74
68.701.80
8559145
50,139.30
208,596.46
89,083.85
116.234.56
82175.04
101,804.64
111.089.50
81,163.37
58,081.32
446,316.74
592171
86.478.11
74.950.47
442, 759.88
138.503.38
194.909.48
95,664.23
52,144.52
6712748
93,928.35
88.928.08
80,331.72
51,141.84
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Casavant, Corrine $ 69,596.53 Dolata, Wojciech $ 445637.30
Caza, Alison 58,19542 Dolha, Courtney 54 548 88
Chabot, Kali 99,346 46 Donald, Mandi 52,144 81
Chalchal, Haji 452 594 66 Douglas, Leona 73,139.03
Chandna, Ayesha 332,280.83 Drever, Laura 158,060.86
Cherepuschak, Penny 52,144 84 Dryden, Alexis 102, 348.35
Cherand, Susan 1367127 Duchscher, Dana 94 07957
Choquette, Heather 106,794 87 Dufresne, Ron 185,176.38
Christenson, Kendra 7823893 Dukes, Tina 5754537
Clark, Rebecca 7511539 Dumais, Karla 75,777 56
Clayton, Kimberly 89,849.10 Dwemychuk, Lynn 115,657.32
Cockwill, Ryan 103,356 90 Dyczkowski, Theresa 94,097 44
Cole, Scott 95,121.53 Edmunds, Laurie 78,390.81
Colleaux, Dena 89,381.84 Edwards, Trent 95,072.13
Conklin, Sheldon 70,952 58 Efthimiou, Karen 119,571.59
Cook, Darcy 102 479.74 Eger, Shaylin 83,854 .84
Coons, Randi 69,689.18 El-Gayed, Ali 442 75991
Cooper, Sarah 57,243 68 Elsayed, Naglaa 167.435.04
Caorbin, Denise 68,980.97 El-3ayed, Assem 342 980 25
Cousins, Kenapha 52.516.01 Emara, Mohamed 342 97962
Cousins, Sara Rose 55,557 95 English, Azure 111.405.03
Cowan, Sarah 90,457 17 Enns, Karen 81,846.06
Cowin, Noah 91,730.89 Enriguez, Anna-Liza 56,751 46
Craig, Ernest 114,252 79 Erickson, Heather 90,666.72
Crane, Amanda 92,250.95 Esmail, Lina 90,260.81
Cranmer-Sargison, Gavin 195,135.18 Eswedi, Abdulhaki 460,729.82
Crerar Koshuba, Robin 60,765.90 Falkenstein, Carly 79,874 .36
Crewson, Cody 93,702.28 Fan, Xiao Yan 60,862.13
Cross, Deborah 64,991 48 Farrow, Delee 81,754 37
Curran, Katlin 70,181.83 Farthing, Merle 5841341
Dacey Dudey, Christine 51,830.22 Faulkner, Merrick 54.827.36
Dale, Jessica 67,106.22 Fay, April 78,107 06
Dallorto, Suzanne 105,890.26 Federko, Robyn 104,103.74
Danyluk, Patricia 110,693.90 Fensom, Jillian 100,205.67
Davies, Laci 84 95579 Ferguson, Michelle 45089776
Dawes, Jennifer 100,497 63 Femer, Lindsay 105.878.07
Dean, Lana 106,972.12 Ferozdin, Sajjad 90,728.77
Deane, Mary 84 979 68 Fiddler, Kerri 7972551
Decker, Allison 91,490.56 Fiessel, Wanda 94 314.76
Decker, Kathryn 52 607 47 Filipchuk, Monica 81,561.27
Dedinca, Gresa 56,532 83 Finlay, Kelli 79,799.50
Deng, Peng 93,258.10 Fisher, Jennifer 73,198.01
Derdall, Carson 71,068.26 Flaman, Josiah 63,750.58
Derrick, Peter 96,441.99 Flegel, Joanna 53,847.32
Deschamps, Michelle 111,566.78 Florizone, Jackie 63,081.46
Deters, Tim 95,139.76 Flowers, Barbara 65,340.65
Dimaguila, Teresa 60,222 41 Fogal, Stacey 91,785.05
Dockray, Leanne 5845857 Fonagy, Rhonda 55,635.20
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Fondrick, Lacey
Fong, Yvonne
Fontaine, Chelsey
Forreiter, Dorothy
Foster, Lisa

Fourlas, Karlee

Fox, Pauline

Frank, Tracy
Friedrich, Kimberly
Friskie, Robin
Gallivan, Andrea
Gardiner, Donald
Garratt, Kevin
Gartner, Helen
Geisler, Ryan
Geisler, Shawn
George, Janet
George, Khloe
George, Theresa
Gerber, Laurie
Gervais, Amanda
Giambattista, Joshua
Gibney, Nicole
Gibson, Della

Giles, Taylor

Glass, Lisa
Glenister, Shannon
Good, Carlene
Goodman Chartier, Sandra
Goodyear, Genny
Gordon, Brittany
Goubran-Messiha, Hadi
Gough, Margot
Gray-Lozinski, Denise
Greene, Terry
Grubor, Sasa

Guy, Mallory

Gyorfi, Keely
Hackywicz, Courtney
Hadland, Shane
Hagel, Kimberly
Haider, Kamal-Udd
Hala, Karen
Halstead, Kelsey
Hanson, Christin
Hag, M. Mansoor
Hart, Caroline
Hastings, James

Payee Disclosure List

$ 5235813
105,354.72
67,499.45
90,108.32
89,839.57
89,430.05
88,996.75
89,783.89
82,129.44
67,747.20
65,171.04
448,114.82
118,764.44
88,866.40
69,938.50
71,433.39
88,966.12
60,302.36
96,649.06
60,172.15
88,175.63
381,603.88
54,476.98
54,225.31
58,164.02
142,518.38
89,110.87
94,084.47
81,230.92
58,229.89
56,665.50
457,035.82
67,048.80
66,446.81
55,538.93
67,840.91
62,933.38
55,288.67
62,667.33
82,115.69
414,087.02
438,598.44
72,497.54
101,504.72
70,775.69
499,388.47
221,7117.17
97,114.04
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Hautz, Jo-Anne
Hawryluk, Wanda
Heinrich, Arlene
Hepting, Jaclyn
Herasymuik, Laura
Herle, Chandra
Hicks, Jolene
Hischebett, Rick
Ho, Jenny

Hobson, Raelene
Hodgins, Debra
Hopkins, Blaire
Hordos, Janelle
Hornseth, Shyanne
Houshmand, Shauna
Igbal, Mussawar
Islam, Mohammed
Ismail, Waleed Sabry
Jacobson, Amanda
Jameson, Brenda
Jan, Shalene
Jancewicz, Miroslav
Janzen, Tracie
Jelovic, Andrew
Johnson, Kate
Johnson, Norine
Jones, Brenda
Jones, Shannon
Jorgensen, Bryan
Judd, Alison
Kaban, Susan
Kary, Steven
Kastelic, Sherry
Keffer, Melodie
Keller, Brooke
Kennedy, Donna
Kerviche, Annette
Keuler, Lisa

Khan, Muhammad
Khare, Ajinkya
Kindrachuk, Marg
Kirby, Gregory
Kish, Donna
Kliewer, Sara
Kodad, Shruthi
Kolosnjaji, Aleksander
Kondra, Erica
Koolen, Megan

99,375.22
50,227.45
88,595.31
92,134.33
58,580.07
81,714.45
111,810.44
158,978.99
72,227.10
88,5619.87
111,843.07
50,725.33
99,328.72
89,766.24
91,536.87
455,813.87
94,624.47
452,324.47
104,097.80
153,149.16
58,306.12
150,461.03
82,387.71
89,720.27
389,633.19
52,854.22
76,141.97
68,006.71
128,398.65
94,089.89
70,810.85
99,659.04
78,739.85
65,523.49
62,841.80
77,538.78
76,631.44
84,874.10
79,675.22
95,139.78
73,883.97
81,965.73
88,685.02
77,243.64
268,843.37
94,266.76
93,042.58
52,885.43
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Kosloski, Judy $ 7231858 Marchant, Kristin $ 153.756.00
Kosokowsky, Rachelle 68,949.06 Martin, Chantel 106,678.16
Kostyniuk, Lindsay 86,913.41 Martin, Stacy 74,118.33
Kovacs, Cindy 90,880.37 Martinson, Alexandra 12525094
Kowbel, Beverly 105,675.08 Matheson, Colin 58,542 42
Kozie, Serena 84 176.80 Mcauley, Karen 95.019.77
Kreis, Carie 58,205.92 Mccormick, Cecilia 60,444 15
Kroeker, Dana a97.400.66 Mcdougall, Cheryl 71,337.36
Kruger, Lana 99 881.36 Mcewen, Denise 79,654 26
Kumar, Suresh 306,872 .85 Mcginn, Stephanie 87,592 34
Kundapur, Vijayanan 449,683.32 Mcgregor, Cherith B0,939.52
Kuyek, Sherry 86,988.29 Mcivor, Sarah 88.765.97
Lacey, Jill 105,705.54 Mckay, Courtney 81,462 23
Lacey, Kevin 179,713.83 Mckay, Letitia 70,376.10
Laing, David 88.201.16 Mckenzie, Erin 104,669 86
Lamontagne, Nicole 69,627 46 Mckenzie, Jennifer 93,790.58
Landry, Serena 80,984 .89 Mclean, Jessica 102,951.03
Landstad, Taralyn 52,893 66 Memurphy, Denise 53,095 85
Langston, Danielle 117,432.94 Mcvicar, Laurie 88,855.99
Le, Duc 442 904 .95 Mewhirter, Samantha 85,017.41
Leask, Jessica 54 15920 Mendoza, Mary 86,200.10
Legare, Angela 89,444 37 Mendoza-Cabuco, Jelly 51,310.37
Lewis, Dawn 52,361.99 Mensch, Jackie 101,809.51
Lewis, Margaret 138.59594 Mentanko, Kelly 94 3477
Li, Allen 59,485.54 Milligan, Laura 53,22919
Liang, Venessa 102,643.13 Milner, Natalya 110,297 69
Lipinski, Nicole 5450148 Mitchell, Laurel 78,918 66
Liss, Shavaun 55,587.76 Molde, Kelli 86,077.39
Little, Cynthia 72,454 51 Monteith, Jennifer 55,083.22
Liu, Derek 140,071.17 Morrison, Kelsie 76,882 60
Lobzun, Kevin 100,554 63 Murchison, Mallory 53,325.88
Lomenda, Vanessa 75,853.39 Musa, Abeer 304,374 98
Lukowich, Kristen 87,503.84 Muz, Lori 90,021.96
Luoma, Sheri 66,099.76 Mychan, Alena 53,025.28
Luterbach, Sharon 71717.06 Myhre, Janessa 63,065.73
Ly, Ketsia 82,245.88 Narasimhan, Gopinath 98,490.25
Lysohirka, Shasta 85,369 86 Nault, Samahlee 67,214.39
Maas, Benjamin 396,355 88 Nelson, Nicole 69,955.65
Macdonald, Colin 88,503.10 Neufeld, Leah 51,039.84
Macdonald, Janice 80,536.81 Neufeld, Rebekah 86,968 32
Macedward, Kathy 89,334 57 Newton, Lisa 79,610.18
Macera, Francesca 75,821.67 Nicholson, Kara 104,259.03
Magosse, Matt 97.081.22 Nilson, Linda 69,010.60
Mah Vuong, Pearl 70,724.09 Nistor, Gail 65,830.44
Mahmood, Rehan 22951403 Noor, Syed 32758999
Mahmood, Shazia 475,686.11 Nordal, Robert 56,247 93
Mallett, Louise 95,304 44 Norman, Carla 88,346 45
Manna, Mita 401,429.59 MNorman, Pamela 5844359
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Nygaard, Tracy $ 6863175 Robson, Laura $ 5827225
Cdonnell, Kaitlin 63,213.27 Rohel, Tiffany 89,216.08
Olesen, Natasha 101,554.85 Roszell, Donald 114,820.18
Othman, Ibraheem 426,614 23 Rudichuk, Jeffrey 80,624 06
Ofitoju, Chantel 87,367 92 Rumpel, Laurie 108,922 93
Ouellette, Cory 27747 Rundle, Tammy 5235819
Paculan, Melody 60,220.60 Russell, Elaine 58,702 95
Padbury, Reg 158,938.54 Russell, Nancy 80,958.38
Padia, Jignesh 56,239 .92 Russill, Darla 6424169
Paisley, Justine 89,209 96 Ryan, Susan 8973298
Paiva, Amy 59.,971.58 Saini, Sanjeev 85,114 57
Palmer, Leah 103,772.52 Sami, Amer 438,598 49
Panhwar, Amanullah 269,784.05 Sanderson, Jennifer 94.630.11
Parr, Brittany 51,073.81 Sapieha, Shannon 94 478.07
Patel, Charmi 65,175.90 Sarker, Sabyj 9993998
Patel, Shrey 73,5281 Sauder, Matthew 88,449 16
Patel, Yaminkumar 71,419.99 Schaffel, Donna 51,040.35
Patterson, Janet 92 149 65 Scherman, Jennifer 133,248.32
Pearce, Laurie 89,042.70 Schiltz, Colette 94 ,305.68
Pearson, Derek 402,948.08 Schmidt, Darren 89,916.12
Pedulla, Annamaria 80,984 .43 Schondelmier, Rhonda 51,72919
Pekar, Julius 148,085.18 Schultz, Danielle 67,192 92
Pelletier, Devon 89,955 31 Schultz, Kayla 87,1991
Pelzer, Lindsay 85,963 65 Schulz, Marcia 58,246 17
Penna, Stephanie 86,638.58 Schumann, Irmgard 9438243
Perry, Annamae 10446521 Schwartz, Lyndon 103,408.21
Perry, Chantal 10551765 Schwartzenberger, Delinda 88,28568
Perry, Emily 74,204 16 Sebastian, Kimberly 89,865.78
Phillips, Leah 98,546 52 Seidler, Janelle 69,426 15
Pierlot, Joan 111,978.92 Selch, Taralyn 86,213.14
Piper, Jaimie 95,139.75 Shaw, Judy 8987874
Poll, Renise 81,508.19 Sherin, Danielle 131,813 64
Pollock, Lenore 87,338.94 Shinkewski, Patty 75,938.09
Poulton, Nadine 8398553 Shuflita, Laureen 76,016.28
Power, Kafrina 89,956 59 Shull, Shavon 60,449 66
Procyk, Bernadette 66,083.09 Siarkos, Theodosia 89,820.62
Qureshi, Kakehasha 323,484 82 Siemens, Trevor 81,226 69
Radwi, Ghazala 203,283 44 Simon, Jennifer 5237824
Redekop, Erin 72,706.83 Singh Thakur, Varun 146,403.23
Reich, Allie 57,050.66 Sirdar, John 92,768 36
Reichert, Brian 104,715.28 Smetaniuk, James 58,761.20
Reid, Stacey 76,929 68 Smith, Angela 50,615.86
Rempel, Colyn 65,294 78 Smith, Jocelyne 84,788 65
Richard, Maeghan 89,365.09 Smith, Kaitlyn 69,015.70
Richards, Mardel 92,807 37 Smith, Preslie 7562383
Ripplinger, Yvonne 87,142 .05 Sorsdahl, Lisa 80,244 08
Robb, Karen 76,243.08 Sofnikow, Madison 58,384 61
Robertson, Kathy 71,005.02 Souied, Osama 91,946 07
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St Pierre, Michelle $ 5438095 Villeneuve, Carissa $ 90,707 65
Stacey, Kyle 65,420.08 Visvanathan, Britiney 73,294 96
Stakiw, Julie 445 849.68 Vizeacoumar, Franco 128,750 .40
Starosta, Joann 94 867 86 Wacker, Steven 107.073.48
Stevenson, Brooklyn 56,018.06 Wagner, Dominique 89.426.11
Stewart, Knsta 58,578 86 Wagner, Maya 124.203.89
Stopanski, Carina 82.650.81 Wall, Alana 88,359.25
Stoppler, Stacey 58,793.10 Wallace, James 96,964 .31
Strachan, Heather 5252803 Wallace, Lana 5213959
Stroh, Evan 79,760.04 Walliser, Linda 106,552 81
Struck, Karly 52,395.07 Watson, Pauline 65,964.60
Stuart-Panko, Heather 116,313.79 Watts, Tracy 54 28164
Stuckel, Renee 81,972.22 Weigel, Tamara 99.078.69
Sumar, Reezwan 81,95348 Weinrich, lan 85,956.05
Sundaram, Vinita 321,929 62 Weir, Linda 138,320.74
Sweet, Rhonda 52,427 46 Welsh, Sherri 52,783.64
Switzer, Landon 90,654 .51 Wenaus, Cori 81,977.86
Tai, Patricia 457 853 35 Weppler, Richard 94 31547
Templeton, Wendie 72,704 17 Weslowski, Lindsay 58,444 08
Tenezaca, Raquel 58,275.56 Westad, Anne 103,136.32
Tessier, Lindsay 87.616.76 Whelan, Jennifer 58,495 41
Thain, Caroll 105,890.21 Whiting, Cheryl 122,869.65
Thauberger, Jenna 51,346.19 Whittle, Alison 111,978.85
Thirugnanasampanthar, Vasuky 70,289.29 Williams, Joanne 6142533
Thomas, Barbara 66,642.17 Wilson, Kevin 202,095.41
Thompson, Cheryle 99,735.24 Wilson, Khristine 69,031.98
Thue, Deanna 87, 721.04 Wilson, Marlo 61,317.50
Thurber, Colleen 79,639.36 Woitas, Carla 65,237.03
Tiefenbach, Paula 90,730.78 Wood, Valerie 92 34145
Tinline, Paula 94 .656.94 Woodrow, Nicole 87.979.68
Tonita, Jon 265,707.79 Woodside, Lisa 62,251.82
Toon, Brenda 85,848 80 Woolsey, Tanya 75,926.69
Topola, Melody 59,768.52 Wright, Kendra 103,637.73
Tram, Sabrina 107,893.12 Wright, Philip 442 823 31
Tran, David 84.731.04 Xiang, Jim 174,863 11
Tremblay, Colleen 90,025.89 Yadav, Sunil 438,598 46
Treppel, Diane 10125943 Yathon, Heidi 80,042 83
Turley, Dominic 94 31475 Young, Jana 91,881.38
Tumer, Tyna 54,720.58 Youssef, Hanaa 60,494 60
Tyacke, Alisha 71,526 17 Yuzik, Patricia 100,161.76
Tymchak, Cara 68,016.26 Zaba, Donna 89,183.99
Tyndall, Joanne 94,781.08 Zahayko, Michelle 66,557 69
Tyrer, Dusty 54 744 81 Zarkovic, Mirjana 448 988 52
Ullrich, Sherrll 84,383.00 Zatylny, Paula 67,565.42
Usher, Barbara 81,494 47 Zerff, Terry-Lynn 122,309.43
Uz Zaman, Mohammad 67,229.30 Zhu, Tong 99 296 94
Vandenameele, Angela 67,119.33 Zimmer, Keeley 56,446.04
Vandenberg, Jennifer 53,378.67 Zimmer, Natasha 109,495 40
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Payee Disclosure List

For the year ended March 31, 2020

Supplier Payments

Listed are payees who received $50,000 or more for the provision of goods and services, including office supplies,

communications, contracts and equipment.

3sHealth

Dr. Tahir Abbas Medical Professional Corporation
Abbvie Corporation

Dr. Osama Ahmed Medical Professional Corporation
Dr. Alhayki Medical Professional Corporation

Allina Health Laboratory

Alvi, Dr. S.

Dr. A. Amjad Medical Professional Corporation
Apobiologix

Dr. Muhammad Aslam Medical Professional Corporation
Associated Radiologists

Dr. Gillian Bailey Inc.

Dr. Ayesha Bashir Medical Professional Corporation
Baxter Corporation

Bayer Inc.

Biomed Recovery & Disposal

Bristol-Myers Squibb Canada

Brown Communications Group

Canadian Blood Services

Canadian Pharmaceutical Distribution Network
CancerCare Manitoba

Candor Build Construction Corporation

Cardinal Health Canada

Carey, Dr. Mark S.

Celgene Inc.

City of Saskatoon

College of Physicians & Surgeons of Saskatchewan
Colliers McClocklin Real Estate Corporation

Curium Canada Inc.

Dell Canada Inc.

Diners Club

Dr. Reddy’s Laboratories Canada Inc.

Dorie-Anna Dueck Medical Professional Corporation
eHealth Saskatchewan

Eisai Ltd.

Elekta Canada Inc.

Elite Information Systems & Consuliing Inc.
Essaltani Medical Professional Corporation

Ferring Inc.

Generic Medical Partners

Genomic Health Inc.

GMD Distribution Inc.

Grand & Toy Office Products

Hopkins, Dr. Laura

Dr. Laura Hopkins Medicine Professional Corporation
ICU Medical Canada Inc.

Innovative OncoSolutions Inc.

Innomar Strategies

Insight Canada

INTEGRA Biosciences Corp

Inverness Consuliing

Dr. Nayyer Igbal Medical Professional Corporation
Jazz Pharmaceuticals Canada Inc.

Jim, Dr. Brent

Jooravan and Rattan Medical Professional Corporation

$ 651629
499,083
2,469,508
464,969
298,500
57466
101,475
326,398
1,863,121
493,376
340,503
84,705
348,325
648,568
453,271
100,532
9,831,879
127,161
322 561
28,298,593
60,785
119,261
100,628
91,245
14,417,080
56,587
84,700
505,413
17121
418,757
81,262
885,438
473,829
630,883
229 361
124,056
91,068
464,294
513,457
75,200
605,375
532,800
154,414
74,625
279,397
247 582
858,236
382,363
313,966
55,911
202,163
473,490
306,273
100,457
90,750
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Karl Storz Endoscopy Canada Lid.

Dr. M. I. Khan Medical Professional Corporation
Lawlor, Dr_B.

Lee, Dr. Shaina (Joohyun)

Dr.J.S. Lee Medical Professional Corporation

N. Leong Medical Professional Corporation

Life Technologies Inc.

Carma Lim Medical Professional Corporation

Dr. Rebecca MacKay Medical Professional Corporation
Marsh Canada Ltd.

Dr_ Vickie J. Martin Medicine Professional Corporation
Dr. A_ Paul Masiowski Medical Professional Corporation
McKesson Canada

McKesson Distribution Partners

Melemary Medical Professional Corporation

Merck Canada Inc.

Minister of Finance-Central Services

Dr. O. Moodley Medical Professional Corporation

Dr. C. Mpofu Medical Professional Corporation
NewWest Enterprise Property Group (Sask) Inc.
Panjwani, Dr_ Dilip

Dr_ Dilip Panjwani Medical Professional Corporation
Paradigm Consulting Group LP

PCL Construction Management Inc.

Pfizer Canada Inc. Pharmaceutical

Prairie Advertising Direct Mail Specialists

Purolator Courier Lid.

Radiology Associates of Regina

Radwi, Dr. Mansoor

Royal Bank Visa - Payment Centre

Dr. Evgeny Sadikov Medical Professional Corporation
Dr. Muhammad Salim Medical Professional Corporation
Sask Govt Employees Union

Sask Power

Saskatchewan Registered Nurses Association

Sask Tel

Saskatchewan Health Authority

Schaan Healthcare Products Inc.

Schindel Medical Professional Corporation

Servier Canada Inc.

Siemens Healthcare Lid.

Solvera Solutions

Somagen Diagnostics Inc.

Dr. Osama Souied Medical Professional Corporation
Stantec Architecture Lid.

Dr. Derek Suderman Medical Professional Corporation
Tehseen, Dr. 8.

Teva Canada Lid.

Thyssen Elevator Ltd.

University of Saskatchewan

Dr. Haresh Vachhrajani Medical Professional Corporation
Varian Medical Systems

J Venkatesh Health Care Consuliing Inc.

WBM Office Systems

Dr. A Zaidi Medical Professional Corporation

$ 95138
358,611
76,936
116,747
252500
479,914
125,617
175,277
311,21
123,662
389,976
110,250
19,343,943
10,330,683
480,348
8,228 584
195,943
487,419
510,142
1,264,459
83815
196,757
691,695
587,587
3,050,000
1477.770
152,107
326,522
71,924
196,197
518,579
493,822
1,245,489
59,568
76,418
120,589
9,017,399
200,568
51,750
343,303
1,590,695
402,748
488,660
398,248
169,421
493,617
88,533
280,700
97.684
1,391,851
51,799
4,198,146
280,757
114,764
470,632



Payee Disclosure List

Transfers
Listed are transfers to recipients who received $50,000 or more.

University of Saskatchewan - Saskatchewan Alliance for Youth & Community Well-being $ 251,500
Saskatchewan Health Authority - COPS delivery at Battlefords Union Hospital 125,000
Other Expenditures

Listed are payees who received $50,000 or more for expenditures not included in the above categories.

Government of Saskatchewan
- Disability Income Plan - employer's share $

334,688
Public Employees Pension Plan
- Pension Plan - employer's share 4,119,070
Receiver General for Canada
- Canada Pension Plan - employer's share 1,995,782

- Employment Insurance - employer's share 795,751
3s Health

- 3S Health - Core Dental Plan

623,770
- 3S Health - Extended Health Care Plans 342,892
- 3S Health - In-Scope Health & Dental 1,204,834
Saskatchewan Healthcare Employee's Pension Plan - employer's share
- SHEPP Pension - employer's share 606,846
Workers' Compensation Board 738,259
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Get in Touch

Saskatchewan Cancer Agency
General Reception
639-625-2010

Treatment Centres

Allan Blair Cancer Centre (Regina)
306-766-2213

Saskatoon Cancer Centre
306-655-2662

Hematology Clinic (Regina)
639-625-2016

Lodges

Regina Cancer Patient Lodge
306-359-3166

Saskatoon Cancer Patient Lodge
306-242-4852

'}@{' info@saskcancer.ca

@SaskCancer
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Screening Programs

Screening Program for Breast Cancer
1-855-584-8228

Screening Program for Cervical Cancer
1-800-667-0017

Screening Program for Colorectal Cancer
1-855-292-2202
Patient Representative

Quality of Care Coordinator
1-866-577-6489
gcc@saskcancer.ca

Cancer Foundation of Saskatchewan

1-844-735-5590
info@cancerfoundationsask.ca
www.cancerfoundationsask.ca

A |

' www.saskcancer.ca

@ @SaskCancer



